
 

Agenda - Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 

Committee 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 3 - Senedd 

Meeting date: Wednesday, 5 July 2017 

Meeting time: 09.45

For further information contact: 

Gareth Price 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEIS@assembly.wales

Private pre-meeting (09.45-10.00) 

 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

   

2 Growing Mid Wales - City Deals and the Regional Economies of 

Wales 

(10.00-11.00) (Pages 1 - 14)  

Cllr Ellen ap Gwyn, Chair of Growing Mid Wales, Leader of Ceredigion County 

Council 

Cllr Gareth Lloyd, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Ceredigion County Council  

Cllr Martin Weale, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Powys County Council 

Cllr Myfanwy Alexander, Portfolio Holder for Education, Powys County Council 

Mike Shaw, Mid Wales Regional Engagement Officer 

 

Attached Documents:  

Research brief 

EIS(5)-17-17 (p1) Growing Mid Wales 

 

Break (11.00-11.15) 

 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



3 Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure - City Deals and 

the Regional Economies of Wales 

(11.15-12.15) (Pages 15 - 20)  

Ken Skates AM, Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure 

Gwenllian Roberts Deputy Director, Energy Wales Unit, Welsh Government 

 

Attached Documents:  

EIS(5)-17-17 (p2) Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure 

 

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting 

   

5 Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and 

Infrastructure regarding the National Infrastructure Commission 

for Wales 

(12.15-12.30) (Pages 21 - 24)  

 

Attached Documents:  

EIS(5)-17-17 (p3) Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy 

and Infrastructure regarding the National Infrastructure Commission for 

Wales 

 

Private de-brief (12.30-12.40) 

  



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau/ Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 

Committee 

EIS(5)-17-17 (p1)  

 

1. A Growth Deal for Mid Wales  

1.1 Growing Mid Wales is an inclusive regional economic partnership and engagement 

arrangement between the public, private and third sector, one of four that cover 

Wales. The initiative, which was first established in 2015, seeks to represent the 

region’s interests and drive forward priorities for improvements to our local 

economy. The partnership’s purpose is to enable the region to fulfil its role as the 

rural powerhouse of Wales. 

1.2 GMW is fully committed to developing a growth deal approach for Mid Wales, and 

believes such a regional approach to economic development is vital because of the 

distinct nature of the economy in Mid Wales – the structural dependence on 

agriculture, the dispersed population, the historically low rates of productivity and 

the high proportion of SMEs. These factors are rarely found elsewhere on such a 

large scale and the distinct economic situation of the region has been recognised in 

previous government policy with organisations such as the Development Board for 

Rural Wales. 

1.3 In a national context, a growth deal for Mid Wales would mean a consistent 

approach across Wales in relation to both financial support and devolution of 

powers to the regions.  

2. Sector Deals  

 

2.1 Because of our region’s rural character, we are aware of the possibility that rural 

sector deal package may be developed across UK. The region already levers in 

significant investments from UK government and its agencies (for example BBSRC 

and InnovateUK) and there are other regional initiatives in the sector, (such as the 

Agri-Tech West Alliance in England).  We are discussing with key stakeholders and 

seeking to be party to emerging ‘deals’. 

 

3. Regional Inequalities 

3.1 GMW welcomes and supports the WLGAs recognition of Inclusive Growth as central 

to future regional development in Wales, and the key role the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act can play in providing a framework for activity. A more equal and 

cohesive Wales cannot be achieved if all regions are not given the same 

opportunities for prosperity and growth – this includes access to local growth deals. 

3.2 It would also be impossible to achieve a cohesive nation without investing in the 

centre of the country that connects it all together – the Mid Wales region. This 

Pack Page 12



region has historically been subject to lower levels of investment, and no growth 

deal investment would only exacerbate the existing situation. 

3.3 It will be vital for all four economic regions within Wales to work together in order to 

ensure the maximum outcomes for their own individual regions – regions are 

developing their own priorities based on the opportunities present, and the sharing 

of information will be vital to ensure balanced economic development across the 

whole of Wales. 

3.4 GMW is currently developing a programme based approach based on the significant 

sector-based opportunities in the region – namely Defence and Security; Animal 

Health and Veterinary Science; and Biotechnology and Agri-Tech – but we are also 

fully aware of the need to take account of inequality issues within our region.  

Investment in infrastructure, including digital infrastructure, in Mid Wales lags 

behind that in other economic regions, further exacerbating existing issues in terms 

of both businesses accessing markets and residents accessing services. Investment in 

strategic transport corridors is therefore vital. There are also issues around equity of 

access to quality FE opportunities in the county, with many post-16 students 

choosing to travel over the border into England or to other Welsh regions. 

4. Fit with Welsh Government Strategy 

4.1 Growing Mid Wales has an established working relationship with Welsh 

Government, and is fortunate to have WG as a member of its inclusive partnership 

and benefits from significant input from WG Economy, Transport, Regeneration and 

Rural Affairs.  GMW has worked closely with WG, the WLGA and other economic 

regions within Wales to help determine the early role of regional economic 

partnerships in an emerging post-Brexit landscape. Growing Mid Wales wishes to 

continue this work and further develop our understanding of how best to ensure 

national WG initiatives interact with, and relate, to regional activities in partnership 

with the recently established WG Regional Alignment Board. 

4.2 We would highlight that it is currently difficult to comment on the degree to which 

growth and city deals co-ordinate with WG strategy as we are awaiting the 

publication of the four new cross-cutting national strategies - Prosperous and 

Secure, Healthy and Active, Ambitious and Learning and United and Connected.  

However, GMW generally welcomes the recognition of the need to change WG 

economic development structures to work in closer partnership with the regions, 

and hopes that other WG policy areas will adopt a similar regional outlook in their 

work. 

4.3 Growing Mid Wales also recognises the importance of working closely with UK 

Government Departments to ensure that Wales maximises opportunities from other 

Pack Page 13



key UK Government-led funding initiatives in addition to the Local Growth Fund, 

such as the recently proposed Industrial Strategy. We recognise the need for WG 

and UK Government to work closer together to provide arrangements fit for purpose 

both in terms of policy and delivery, and also to work in conjunction with regional 

economic partnerships in Wales to ensure parity of esteem with LEPs. 

 

The Growing Mid Wales Partnership would welcome the opportunity to discuss the region’s 

plans and answer questions on the situation and opportunities in mid-Wales. 

Background 
Growing Mid Wales: 

1. A regional economic partnership and engagement arrangement between the public, 
private and third sectors for mid-Wales and was established in 2015.  

2. One of four recognised economic regions which cover the whole of Wales. 
3. Represents the region’s interests and drives forward priorities for improvements to 

our regional economy.  
The Partnership’s overarching goal is to establish the region as the rural powerhouse of 
Wales. 
 

Pack Page 14



ECONOMY, INFRASTRUCTURE AND SKILLS COMMITTEE 
WRITTEN EVIDENCE – CITY DEALS AND THE REGIONAL ECONOMIES OF 

WALES 
 

Purpose 
 
1. This paper provides written evidence from the Cabinet Secretaries for 
Economy and Infrastructure and Finance and Local Government on progress 
with City and Growth Deals in Wales and the contribution they make to the 
regional economies of Wales. 
 
Background 
 
2. Following the successful signing of both the Cardiff Capital and 
Swansea Bay Region City Deals progress continues to be made in identifying 
and delivering the steps to realise the ambitions of these deals, led by the 
local authorities in collaboration with regional stakeholders.  This paper 
provides an update on progress with the Deals that have been signed, as well 
as outlining proposals for Growth Deals elsewhere in Wales. 
 
3. City Deals are led by the ambition of local authorities and based on 
regional collaboration amongst stakeholders, who identify their priorities for 
intervention to drive sustainable economic growth.  The Welsh and UK 
Governments are co-signatories in the Deals, but the key principle is that the 
local partners develop and deliver proposals which will create local economic 
growth. 
 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 

 
4. The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal was signed by the local authorities 
and the Welsh and UK Governments in March 2016.  This Deal aims to 
provide local partners with the resources to unlock significant economic growth 
across the Cardiff Capital Region, enabling the local authority leaders to make 
decisions on a regional basis, pool their resources and work more effectively 
with local businesses. 
 
5. The Deal established an Investment Fund for the Region of £1.2bn over 
a 20-year period. The Deal seeks to build on the region’s sectoral strengths, 
its high skill base and three successful universities.  It provides an opportunity 
to continue tackling the area’s barriers to economic growth by improving 
transport connectivity; increasing skill levels; supporting people into work; and 
giving businesses the support they need to innovate and grow. 
 
Impact 
 
6. Over its lifetime, the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal aims to deliver up 
to 25,000 new jobs and lever an additional £4 billion of private sector 
investment. 
 
Funding 

 
7. The £1.2bn Cardiff Capital Region City Deal includes funding of £734m 
for the South Wales Metro, of which over £500m is provided by the Welsh 
Government, £125m from the UK Government and £106m from ERDF. The 

Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau / Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee 
EIS(5)-17-17 (p2)   

Pack Page 15

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

Deal also sees a further £495m (£375m from the UK Government and £120m 
from local authorities) available to prioritise in line with the objectives of the 
Deal. 
 
Governance 
 
8. The governance arrangements for Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 
have been published and agreed by the ten local authorities.  
 
9. The authorities have established a Joint Cabinet to provide the 
leadership and accountability for the Deal.  It will be supported and advised by 
an Economic Growth Partnership and Regional Business Organisation 
ensuring the Deal reflects the needs of the private sector and wider 
stakeholders. A shadow Regional Transport Authority has also been created, 
to establish strategic priorities across the region. 
 
10. These arrangements also govern the identification and selection of 
interventions, decision making, risk management and ongoing monitoring, 
evaluation and reporting, to ensure that the city deal successfully delivers the 
benefits intended for the region. 
 
Monitoring Arrangements 
 
11. The Cardiff Capital region is working with Welsh Government and the 
UK Government to develop an agreed implementation, monitoring and 
evaluation plan.   
 
12. The full allocation of the funding is subject to the Cardiff Capital Region 
City Deal’s successful completion of the Five Year Gateway Reviews, which 
will evaluate the impact of the Deal’s investment of the funding in the five year 
period up to the Review. The assessments will be underpinned by an 
independent review of the economic benefits and economic impact of the 
investments and whether projects developed by local authorities, have been 
delivered on time and to budget. 
 
City Deal Projects 
 
13. Following the formal ratification of the £1.2bn Cardiff Capital Region 
City Deal in March 2017 and the local government elections, the region is in 
the process of identifying, prioritising and agreeing projects and interventions 
to deliver the ambitions of the Deal. 
 
14. An assurance framework has been developed and agreed by the local 
authorities, with agreement from both Welsh and UK Governments, to provide 
a transparent process for identifying, prioritising and agreeing projects and 
interventions that benefit the whole City Region. 
 
15. The Region has announced its first investment.  We welcome the plans 
to invest £37m to create a world-leading technology cluster in Newport, as the 

Pack Page 16



3 
 

first project to be supported by this City Deal, which is expected to create more 
than 2,000 jobs and is backed by £12m of Welsh Government funding. 
 
16. Led by the Welsh Government, delivery of the South East Wales Metro 
is at the heart of the Deal, including the Valley Lines Electrification 
programme. The procurement process for the Metro has now commenced and 
a Memorandum of Understanding has been agreed between the Welsh 
Government and the City Deal Joint Cabinet which outlines the roles and 
interactions for the design and delivery of future phases of Metro. 
 
Swansea Bay City Region Deal 
 
17. The £1.3bn Swansea Bay City Region Deal is the second deal in 
Wales, signed in March 2017.  It offers a vehicle for supporting economic 
growth across South West Wales. The signing of this deal confirms a joint 
commitment among the four local authorities, Welsh and UK Governments, to 
work together and fully implement the plans set out in the document. 
 
18. The Swansea Bay City Region Deal is structured differently to the 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal.  Rather than establishing an infrastructure 
fund, the Welsh Government, the UK Government and the partners have 
agreed to jointly fund a series of projects within the themes of Health, Energy, 
Economic Acceleration and Smart Manufacturing.  There are eleven major 
projects proposed in total.  Detailed business cases will now be developed, 
and will be subject to approval by the Joint Committee and the Welsh and UK 
Governments. The partners are also developing the governance arrangements 
to provide strong leadership and accountability for the Deal’s successful 
delivery. 
 
Impact 
 
19. Over the next 15 years this Deal aims to boost the local economy by 
£1.8 billion and generate almost 10,000 new jobs, attracting £637 million from 
the private sector. 
 
Funding  
 
20. The Swansea Bay City Deal will be underpinned by a total investment 
package of £1.3bn made up of £125.4m Welsh Government funding, £115.6m 
of UK Government funding, £396m of other public sector money and £637m 
from the private sector.  
 
Governance 
 
21. The proposed governance arrangements for the Swansea Bay Region 
City Deal are centred on a Joint Cabinet. This approach positions local 
authorities at the very heart of a Deal.  This Deal also proposes the creation of 
an Economic Strategy Board which will monitor progress with the delivery of 
the Deal and will provide strategic advice to the Joint Committee on the City 
Deal. Formal governance arrangements and a delivery model are being 

Pack Page 17



4 
 

agreed by the four local authorities and will need to be approved by the UK 
and Welsh Governments. 
 
Monitoring  
 
22. The Swansea Bay City Region will work with the Welsh and UK 
Governments to develop an agreed implementation, monitoring and evaluation 
plan in advance of commencing the deal, which sets out the proposed 
approach to evaluating the impact of delivery.  
 
Growth Deal for North Wales 
 
23. The Welsh Government is continuing to work closely with the North 
Wales Region and the North Wales Ambition Board to consider how a Growth 
Deal can best support their ambitions to bring further economic growth. 
 
24. As for City Deals the Welsh Government is committed to exploring the 
devolution of additional powers and flexibilities to local government where 
there is a strong case that this could support regional growth. 
 
25. A vision document, ‘A Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales’ 
was submitted to both Welsh Government and UK Government Ministers at 
the beginning of August 2016 and is an important starting point for the 
development of a Deal. This vision was agreed individually by all six Local 
Authorities and the North Wales Business Council which included an 
agreement in principle to establish a Joint Committee to own and implement 
the North Wales Growth Bid. 
 
26. In translating this vision into specific interventions that can have an 
economic impact in the region, we have been clear that partners need to 
identify a realistic, proportionate package of measures to unlock Welsh and 
UK Government financial support. 
 
27. We welcomed the UK Government’s continued commitment in the 
March 2017 budget to the North Wales Growth Deal and look forward to 
considering further proposals with the UK Government in due course. 
 
28. The Welsh Government continues to work with local authorities and 

regional stakeholders to understand how we can best support their ambitions, 

including the Economic Ambition Board in relation to their four key work 

streams.  

29. We are also actively engaged with our wider network of stakeholders 
and partners who can assist in delivering economic prosperity. These include 
the three North Wales Enterprise Zones, the North Wales Business Council, 
the Mersey Dee Alliance, Growth Track 360, Cheshire and Warrington Local 
Enterprise Partnership, alongside other key partners and organisations across 
North Wales and the wider Northern Powerhouse area.   
 
Growth Deal for Mid Wales 

Pack Page 18



5 
 

 
30. We remain committed to working with any area of Wales that wishes to 
explore how City and Growth Deals might benefit them.  
 
31. Powys and Ceredigion are continuing to develop ‘Growing Mid Wales’ 
with the Growing Mid Wales Partnership established in early 2015 as a 
regional partnership  comprising of representatives bodies from across the 
public, private and voluntary sectors in mid Wales to lead the region’s 
collaborative approach to economic development.  
 
32. The Partnership has established a Framework for Action which sets key 
priorities for achieving economic growth and prosperity across the region.  The 
Partnership is also working closely with the Marches Local Enterprise 
Partnership on areas of common interest and has engagement on cross 
border issues with other bodies in the Midlands area.   
 
33. It is also our expectation that two sets of distinct arrangements would 
continue under the umbrella of the Central and South West Wales joint 
governance committee area. 
 
Impact of City Deals on Regional Growth 
 
34. City deals are based on collaboration between local partners to develop 
proposals for regional economic growth.  A key consideration is the provision 
of a new set of opportunities and responsibilities to local partners and the 
identification of local economic strengths that provide a base for fostering 
economic growth.  By encouraging partners to work together, the Government 
is looking to local authorities to consider how the needs of the whole region 
can be best supported. It will be important that in driving regional economic 
growth that partners ensure that the benefits are for the whole region.. 
 
35. In working with local partners and the UK Government, the Welsh 
Government has been sensitive to the relationship between the different City 
Deals and Growth Deals.  It is important that the Deals are distinct and are not 
in competition with one another.  This is particularly the case with the 
Swansea Bay and the Cardiff Capital Region City Deals neighbouring one 
another.  Similarly, developments around the North Wales Growth Deal needs 
to reflect the specific needs of Wales and the nature of the cross-border 
economy, including the contribution to the Northern Powerhouse.  The Welsh 
Government has been clear that these regions must work together in a 
complementary way. 
 

Pack Page 19



6 
 

Contribution to Welsh Government Strategy 
 
36. Through its active encouragement of a city region approach to 
economic development in 2012, the Welsh Government signalled a change in 
approach to a more regional focus to economic development.  This included 
the establishment of the City Regions Task and Finish Group and its report 
that recommended the establishment of two city regions in south Wales. 
These developments are aimed at growing regional economies by 
empowering each area to develop its own distinct economic identity and 
specialised sectors.   Regional skills delivery remains a key policy focus going 
forward with Regional Skills Partnerships at the centre. These partnerships are 
an integral part of the City Deals that have been agreed to date. 
 
37. Our measures for improving our transport infrastructure across all parts 
of Wales are set out in the National Transport Finance Plan. The City Regions 
have influenced this transport planning process at both local and national 
level. This has allowed them the opportunity to identify the key improvements 
they believe to be important to their regions. 
 
38. Going forward, we have signalled a move to a more regional approach 
because one of the key challenges we face now is how we refocus and 
sharpen our approach in a way that will help us to achieve balanced growth 
across all parts of Wales. Through the White Paper on Resilient and Renewed 
Local Government, published on 31 January 2017, we set out our proposals to 
build resilience and support renewal in local government, building on extensive 
engagement with local government.  
 
39. At the foreground we have set out a new systematic and mandatory 
approach to regional working as it is at the regional level and in the 
development of more distinct and focused identities to those economies that 
we can drive balanced and sustainable growth, through helping each region to 
develop their own clearly prioritised and specialised sectors.   
 
40. The development of City Deals has demonstrated the impact and 
potential of regional working. City Deals provide a framework, beyond the City 
Deal investment, that allows regions to work together to set economic priorities 
and deliver key functions as a region, including land use planning, skills, 
transport and economic development. 
 
41. City Deals in Wales have given local authorities the opportunity to drive 
forward and make a lasting change in how they work together for the benefit of 
the wider region that they represent.  This is aligned with the Government’s 
approach to local government reform. 
 
 
Mark Drakeford AM Ken Skates AM 
Cabinet Secretary for  
Finance and Local Government 

Cabinet Secretary for  
Economy and Infrastructure 

 
 

Pack Page 20



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 21

Agenda Item 5


	Agenda
	2 Growing Mid Wales - City Deals and the Regional Economies of Wales
	EIS(5)-17-17 (p1) Growing Mid Wales

	3 Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure - City Deals and the Regional Economies of Wales
	5 Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure regarding the National Infrastructure Commission for Wales



